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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Kramertown-Railroad Historic District is composed of sixty-three railroad-related 
buildings arranged linearly in a north-south direction along South Railroad Boulevard in 
McComb, Mississippi. The majority of structures are located east of South Railroad 
Boulevard, since that area contains the core of the district which is the railroad yard, 
but commercial buildings are located on the west side of South Railroad Boulevard at the 
north and south ends of the district. Also contained within the district are a former 
ice house, now adapted to a shopping center, and former cotton sheds, now used for lumber 
storage. Most of the larger buildings in the district are brick. Most brick buildings 
located in the railroad yard date from the 1890s and are characterized by pilastered 
walls and corbel tables.- Brick commercial buildings at the north end of the district were 
constructed after 1904, when a fire destroyed-most of McComb's coiumercial section, and 
before 1925. These buildings are vernacular commercial structures with some raised- 
brick detailing anci roaflines with stepped-or crenelated parapets. A.number have 
pilastered walls, and two-display cast-iron columns. Commercial buildings at the south 
end of the district are similar,but most were constructed in the 1920s. Frame buildings 
are all located within the railroad property, and vertical boarding and board-and-batten 
siding predominate. Many of these structures date from the 1920s and replace earlier 
wooden structures destroyed by fire. The intact and still-used depot is a typical turn- 
of-the-century Mississippi railroad station of the simplest form. The callers' office, 
while smaller, is more elaborate and probably dates from the 1880s. While there are 
some intrusive modern metal buildings in the railroad yard and some incompatible moderni-| 
zations of the commercial storefronts, the proportion of intrusions is low and commercial 
buildings in the district have escaped the canopied pedestrian-mall treatment of the 
adjacent shopping area.

Structures Within the District

Abbreviations at the end of each entry: "P. S." denotes Primary Significance, "C. 5. j'J 
Contributing Significance, "M., " Marginal Significance, and "I., " Intrusion.

1. Waterworks building (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1930. 1-story 2x4-bay board-and-batten 
building with gable roof. 6-over-6 double and triple windows. Double'garage doors 
of vertical boards; other double doors of diagonal boards. (C. S.)

2. Washhouse (Railroad Yard): Date unknown. 1-story Ix2-bay gable-roofed structure 
clad with corrugated metal siding. 6-over-6 windows set high on wall. (M.)

3. Storage shed (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1930. 1-story Axl-bay vertical-boarded equipm<| 
shed. (C. S.) .,

4. Garage (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1930. 1-story flush-boarded front-gabled garage 
building. (C. S.)

5. Coal chute (Railroad Yard): 1945. 2-story 3x3-bay concrete structure with gable 
roof and projecting gable-roofed chute centrally placed on roof ridge. (C. S.)

6. Bridge and Building Department carpenter shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-1/2- 
story 3x6-bay board-and-batten building with gable roof and overhanging eaves. 
Diagonal boarded double doors. Some 12-over-12 windows. (C. S.)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Kramertown-Railroad Historic District in McComb, Mississippi, is both historically 
and architecturally 8titstand'ing. The railroad, ttie yard of which forms the core of the 
district, placed McComb on the map and laid the foundation for subsequent industrial arid 
commercial development. 'In'1911 the"railroad yard was the site of a National Guard en­ 
campment, when McComb was'placed under partial martial"law following a"nationwide strike 
of Illinois Central shop members. In 1946 the first aluminum refrigerator railroad cars 
were manufactured in the district, and as late as 1949 the ice house, constructed in 1904, 
was said to be the "largest ice storage plant in the world" (Jack Hancock, "Spotlight on 
McComb A City that was Built on Purpose," Jackson [Miss.] Daily News, July 31, 1949). 
Despite the loss of the two earliest railroad buildings, the district contains some of 
the best examples of late-nineteenth-century industrial buildings in the state and some 
of the earliest brick buildings in McComb.

McComb, the largest city between Jackson, Miss, and New Orleans, and one of the few 
cities in Mississippi established after the Civil War, was planned^ organized, and 
settled as a railroad town. In 1872 Col. H. S. McComb, president of the struggling 
New Orleans, Jackson & Northern Railroad, moved his railroad shops from New Orleans to 
the site of the present McComb, since the northern location offered more room for 
expansion. The following year McComb organized the Mississippi Valley Company and bought 
land for the promotion of a townsite. Despite Colonel McComb's efforts, his railroad 
failed and was taken over by the Illinois Central System in 1877. After that date 
extensive repairs were made and the facilities considerably expanded, making McComb the 
largest railroad center in the state. For a number of years the railroad was one of the 
city's few industries. Owing to its proximity to strawberry and trucking centers, however 
McComb later became a distribution center for the transportation of truck-garden produce 
to northern markets. In conjunction with this development, the Southern United Ice 
Company began producing ice for refrigerating the railroad cars, in 1904. Prior to that 
date, the Illinois Central cooled cars with ice harvested from Lake Michigan and stored 
in a wooden ice house north of the existing ice house. In 1902 the original frame 
building burned and was replaced with the present brick structure. At that time an ice- 
making machine was installed, thus eliminating the necessity of importing ice from the 
north. In 1920 Xavier Krmaer'took over and greatly expanded the ice company's facilities 
to include a creamery, ice cream factory, and general merchandise store. Kramer also had 
an interest in the cotton industry and was responsible for the construction of the McComb 
Cotton Exchange building (now used as an office building) on 21st Street in 1928, the 
same year he was elected mayor'of 1 McComb. 'The following year, the "semi-fire proof" 
cotton warehouses, which handled a large portion of the cotton grown in the region,were 
constructed (U. S. Works Progress Administration, Source Material for Mississippi 
History, Statewide Historical Research Project, Pike County: Industry; Mississippi
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Mr. and Mrs. Harry Case 
Kramertown Hardware Co. 
21st and Railroad Blvd. 
McComb, MS 39648

Norman B. Gillis, Jr. 
P.O. Box G 
McComb, MS 39648

Norman B. Gillis III 
P. 0. Box G 
McComb, MS 39648'

Illinois Central Gulf Railroad
J. W. Cager, Supt. of Louisiana Division
P. 0. Box 52348
New Orleans, LA 70752

Kalif and Todd
104 S. Railroad Blvd.
McComb, MS 39648

Alvin L. Klotz 
904 Burke St. 
McComb, MS 39648

Mr. Walter Morris 
Kramertown Feed Store 
21st and Railroad Blvd. 
McComb, MS 39648
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7. Bridge and Building Department blacksmith shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story 
2x6-bay board-and-batten building with monitored gable roof. (C. S.)

8. Bridge and Building Department shed (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story Ix7-bay
frame shed enclosed on three sides. Gable roof. East side patched with metal sheets 
(C. S.)

Special Agent's office (formerly Train Master's office)(Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 
1-story 8x2-bay clapboard building with hip roof. Windows located just below 
eaves. (C. S.)

9.

10. Office (Railroad Yard): Modern metal trailer. (I.)

11. Office (Railroad Yard): Modern metal structure. (I.)

12. McComb Depot (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1901. Enlarged 1-story 9x2-bay hip-roofed
railroad station with 5-bay hip-roofed wing. Wide overhanging eaves. Upper and lowei 
sections of the building clad with vertical board; middle section clad with clapboard,

13. Telephone exchange building (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1940. Small 1-story brick 
building with Colonial Revival elements. (C. S.)

14. Commercial block (104-106 S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1914. 1-story 6-bay brick
commercial block with stepped parapet. Two storefronts each with central entrance 
and double-leaf doors. Fluted cast-iron column as center support. Raised brick 
rectangle enriches frieze area. (C. S.)

15. Commercial block (110-114 S.-Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1904. 1-story 9-bay brick
building with three storefronts divided by brick pilasters. Corbeled brick cornice. 
Hinged brick corners. Raised brick rectangle in frieze. (C. S.)

16. Commercial building (116-118 S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1905. 2-story 6-bay brick 
building with scored concrete facing. 12-over-l-sash windows in upper story. 
Recessed central entrance to upper floors flanked by fluted cast-iron columns and 
a 3-bay storefront on each side. One storefront retains original paneled spandrels. 
(C. S.)

17. Commercial building (120-122 S. Railroad Blvd.): 1924. 1-story brick building with 
stepped parapet and stuccoed facade. Two storefronts with original 3-bay facade. 
Facade on rear elevation. (C. S.)



FHR-8-300A 
(11/78)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER PAGE

7 - DESCRIPTION

18. Commercial building (124-126 S. Railroad Blvd.): 1-story 2-bay structure divided 
by pilasters. Recessed frieze panels. Modillioned cornice. Stuccoed facade. 
Infilled storefronts. (C. S.)

19. Caller's office (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1885. 1-story 4xl-bay clapboard building
with gable roof and bracketed eaves. 6-over-6 sash. 3-pane transoms over doors.(P.S

20. Turntable (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1873. Roundhouse demolished ca. 1953.

21. Electrician's Shop (formerly oil house) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1880. 1-story 3x5-bay 
brick building with gable roof. Pilastered walls. Corbel tables in gable ends 
form pediments. (P. S.)

22. Trainmen's locker room (formerly Switchman's shanty) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1- 
story Ix6-bay clapboard building with hip roof. Small rectangular windows set high 
under eaves. (C. S.)

23. Credit Union building (formerly Inspector's shanty) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925.
1-story 1-bay hip-roofed building with masonite siding and shed-roofed rear addition. 
(M.)

24. Former paint room (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story Ixl-bay shiplap-sided building 
with hip roof and shed-roofed canopy. Paired windows. (C. S.)

25. Machine Shop (formerly car shop) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1895. 1-story 4x6-bay brick 
building with monitored gable roof. Shed-roofed brick wing runs length of building 
on east side. Pilastered walls with corbel tables. Main openings in gable ends. 
Windows on side elevation have segmental arches and 12-over-12 sash. (P. S.)

26. Woodworking shop and boiler room (formerly part of machine shop) (Railroad Yard): 
Ca. 1895. 1-story 3xl5-bay brick building with monitored gable roof. Pilastered 
walls with corbel tables. Main openings consist of three large arches in gable end 
on south elevation (P. S.)

27. Car repair shop (Railroad Yard): 1923. 1-story 4x20-bay building with sawtooth 
roof and corrugated asbestos cladding. (C. S.)

28. Paint shed (Railroad Yard): 1977. 1-story Ix6-bay corrugated metal building open 
at both ends. (I.)

29. Materials building (Railroad Yard): 1-story 3xl9-bay building with board-and-
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batten siding. Shallow pitched gable roof with wide overhang on track side.(C. S.)

30. Paint shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1950. 1-story gable-roofed building clad with 
vertical metal sheets. (I.)

31. Pipe shed (formerly tin shop) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story 6x20-bay board-
and-batten sided building with monitored gable roof. 6-over-6 sash windows. Attached
to a smaller building of similar construction. Open sheds at north end. (C. S.)

32. Tin shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1915. 1-story 4xl3-bay building with smaller building 
attached. Clad with board-and-batten siding. Gable roof with ventilators. 5-bay 
shed attached. (C. S.)

33. Tool Room (formerly repair office) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1915. 1-story 5xl3-bay 
building with gable roof and board-and-batten siding. 6-over-6 windows. (C. S.)

34. Carpenter shop and car foreman's office (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story board- 
and-batten gable-roofed building with ventilator. Shed-roofed rear addition. (C. S.)

35. Records building (formerly paint shop): Ca. 1910. 1-story 5xl-bay brick building 
with gable roof. Pilastered walls and corbel tables match other brick building. 
12-over-12 sash windows set in segmental-arch openings. (P. S.)

36. Sewing room and oil house (formerly records building) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1910. 1- 
story 3x3-bay brick building with monitored gable roof. Pilastered walls and corbel 
tables. (P. S.)

37. Superintendent's office (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story 3x6-bay gable-roofed
building clad with shiplap siding covered with asbestos. Paired and triple windows. 
(M.)

38. Materials warehouse (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1940. 1-story 6xl8-bay brick warehouse with 
flat roof, tile coping, and fire wall. Interior contains a small office section 
with beaded-board walls. (C. S.)

39. Blacksmith sheds (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1910. Two gable-roofed sheds attached by a
shed roof. West shed vertical boarded; east shed clad with board and batten. (C. S.)

40. Blacksmith shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1898. 1-story 5xll-bay building with monitored 
gable roof and shed-roofed brick wing on west elevation. 12-over-12-sash windows 
set in segmental rowlock arches. Pilastered side walls with corbel tables. Entrance
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in gable ends. (P. S.)

41. Boiler Shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1895. 1-story 3x7-bay brick building with
monitored gable roof. Large round-arched opening centrally located in gable end on 
south elevation. Side elevations pilastered with corbel tables. Wooden shed 
removed from north elevation. (P. S.)

42. Reclaim shop (formerly foundry) (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1910. 1-story 3x8-bay brick 
building with monitored gable roof and two 2-story ells on cruciform plan. 
Pilastered walls with round louvered opening in gable. Corbel tables. Segmental- 
arched window openings with 16-over-16 sash. (P. S.)

43. Acetylene plant (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1940. 1-story 2x5-bay Flemish-bond brick 
building topped with monitor. Tile coping. Platform attached. (C. S.)

44. Wash and locker room (Railroad Yard): Before 1948. 1-story 9xl-bay brick building 
with gable roof. 6-over-6 sash.

45. Garage (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1925. 1-story gable-roofed vertical-boarded garage
with sliding door in side elevation. Front-gable orientation. Shed-roofed addition 
clad with board and batten. (C. S.)

46. Garage (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1940. 1-story 5-bay brick garage divided by fire walls. 
Vertical-boarded double-leaf doors in each bay. 6-over-6 windows with segmental 
arches on rear elevation. (C. S.)

47. Watertank (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1915. Cypress watertank suspended on wood posts in 
concrete piers. Posts joined'by metal rods. (C. S.)

48. Electric fire pumphouse (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1920. 1-story Ixl-bay gable-roofed 
corrugated metal building which rests on concrete foundation. Doors with large 
industrial hinges. (C. S.)

49. Materials Superintendent's office (formerly Storekeeper's office) (Railroad Yard): 
Ca. 1925. 1-story 4x2-bay clapboard house with gable on hip roof and wide over­ 
hanging eaves. Paired windows with vertically divided upper sash. (C. S.)

50. Fire buggy house (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1910. 1-story 3-sided board-and-batten shed- 
roofed shed which is sheltering fire hose wound on large iron spools. Similar 
structure is also attached to the woodworking shop (#26). (c. S.)
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51. Signal material house (Railroad Yard): Before 1943. 1-story 2-bay shed-roofed 
storage garage clad with vertical board. (C. S.)

52. Lumber shed (Railroad Yard): Before 1943. 1-story 10-bay lumber shed with gable 
roof. One end vertical boarded; other sides open. (C. S.)

53. Wheel shop (Railroad Yard): Ca. 1920. 1-story 3x6-bay gable-roofed building clad 
with vertical board. Shed-roofed metal canopy. Multipane windows ca. 1940. 
Corrugated metal siding covers parts of the building. (C. S.)

54. Ice house (S. Railroad Blvd.): 1904. 2-story brick building with pilastered upper 
walls. Flat roof with monitor. Removable display windows on west elevation. New 
additions on north and south elevation. (P. S.)

55. Commercial block (Ice House Shopping Complex): Ca. 1977. 2-story modern brick 
infill building with 2-tiered gallery. (M.)

56. Ice House Restaurant (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1915. 1-story brick commercial building 
clad with stucco, original facade openings of which have been infilled. New 
restaurant built behind the facade. Small new brick addition on north elevation. 
Remains of an old building in rear have been utilized in planning the patio space of 
restaurant. (M.)

57. Kramertown Hardware and Supply Store (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1922. 1-story brick 
commercial building divided into three bays by wide pilasters which rise above the 
roofline. Original doors and windows on the two storefronts. One storefront has been 
intrusively altered with wood-shingled shed roof which covers original transom and 
partially obscures raised brick rectangle in frieze area. (M.)

58. Kramertown Feed Store (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1929. 1-story 3-bay brick commercial 
building. 3-bay central entrance flanked by 2-bay secondary entrances. Decorative 
brick rectangular panels and soldier-brick cornice. (C. S.)

59. Commercial block (S. Railroad Blvd.): Ca. 1929. 1-story 3-bay brick building with 
a 3-bay central entrance flanked by two secondary entrances. Decorative brick 
rectangular panels and soldier-brick cornice. (C. S.)

60. Commercial block (21st St.): 1928. 1-story 7x3-bay brick commercial block with 
canted corner. Storefronts divided by pilasters which project above the roofline. 
Decorative soldier-brick rectangles. Some modernization of storefronts. (C. S.)
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61 through 63. Cotton sheds (S. Railroad Blvd.): 1929. Series of sheds divided by 
brick fire walls. Clad with a variety of metal siding. (C. S.)

8 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Department of Archives and History, Jackson). A 1928 fire destroyed one building in this 
area which became known as Kramertown, but it was rebuilt in 1929. An earlier fire 
in 1904 destroyed the original commercial section of McComb. The area, which now 
includes commercial structures at the north end of the historic district, was part 
of the affected area, but the present commercial row was complete by 1925. By 1929, then, 
all significant buildings within the district were constructed, and while there has 
been some incompatible modernization the district remains essentially as it was fifty 
years ago.
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8 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Kramertown-Railroad Historic District

Distinguished by pilastered walls, monitored roofs, corbel tables, and round-arched 
openings, brick buildings in the railroad complex furnish valuable examples of late 
nineteenth century industrial buildings in Mississippi. Siting of the brick buildings 
is in clusters with openings onto circular and semi-circular spaces thereby creating 
an interesting contrast to the linear arrangement of frame buildings in the complex. 
Buildings outside the railroad yard are also important as typical vernacular examples 
of early twentieth century commercial buildings and display characteristic features 
of stepped parapets, raised brick decoration and pilastered walls.
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